leﬁ Maﬁha”k to claim the vw!}ory

st Mnommx, BT

i '..mmbq.fmﬂs,, h&th armies vetir: mg to the'-
__'_:Ient.ampmentq Ibmhlm Shah, howevs
' ""mg off’ on the Hexe) momxngx towqrdg'

--..saz;tshec' with this neminal advantdge, muved'

e towards Gualm@}bwmg crossed the Chumbul at

. movea in the divection of Byana, into which place
"*__'__»'Ma;h'amed Khan Ahdy had again thrown' himself
| ‘after  the battle.  On this vccasion, ‘Mahomed
I_-_:Kha%made a brave defence, but was obliged to

-':-.:“,Icapmulate, and had leave to go Whlth&f‘%()(,\ er he
,-'___'.chose ‘Mullik Mahmood Hussun was leftin the

e

i ”‘Shaba I 5 governmeﬂi&"‘of Byana, and, on the 16th.
ane81. of Shaban, 831, Moobank returned to

' May 29, Dehly.  He there seized Mullik Kundroo

A Dn 14‘2!

. 'Shurky in the late war, and ordered him to be. put

alkant, (Adfter Jrewmnw the wusual toibute, he '

Mewatty, who had' Joined Ibrabim Shah

' --"-__:tn ;death, dﬂd Mullik Survirool. Moolk was sent___--_' :

 tooccupy Mewat ; but the inhabitants; deser ting

\ the towns, fled to  the. monntams Julal * Khan

- Mewatty, the brother of Mullik Kudroo, togother

i -_-'_.I-.-'wlth Ahmud Khan, and Mullik I“ukhr-ood Deen
. collected a force within the fort of Alwur, and

defended it so bravely, that Mullik Suryvur-ool-
'--'--ff_'_Moolk was content to receive a: contribution from
:I..-them, and to return to Dehly.

-.Zee.l.ad. . In the month of Zeekad, the King
;;.n 841, received advms, that Jusrut (ml\km
CdiSept. - (had bemeged Kallanore, and had, more-
' __A R 14'.2'?

_ over, defeated Mullik Sikunduy in the
__ -ﬁeld and compelled him to fall back on La.hore.

i Vldc nute,' page 518.
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_ Orders were accordmg]y sent to Zeemk Ishan,
governor of Samana, and to Islam Khan, governor
of Surhind, to reinforce’ Mullik Sikundurj but
‘before their avrival, the lattel had obtained assist-
ance from the Raja of Kallanore, and not only de-
feated Jusrut Gukkur in turn, but deprived him of
all the. plunder he had acqmred in that pmvmce.
Muhurru"n, ln the month of Mohurrum, in the
am. 882, year 832, the King marched to Mewat, i
_ Feb.  and entirely subdued that country, ob-
4:0. 1428 Jiging the inhabitants' to  pay him
tribute. . Advices at this time reached Dehly of
the death of Mullik Rujub Nadiry, governor of
Mooltan, when the title of Imad-ool-Moolk was
conferred on Mullik Mahmood Hussun (who had
settled the affairs of Byana), and be was nominated
to the government of Mooltan. The King, in the
following year, proceeded towards Gualiar, on the
route to which place he required the payment of
tribute from the Raja of Hulkant, who, unable to
. satisfy the demand, fled to the mountains,
i::ﬁfgg‘. while his country was laid waste, and his
: - subjects carried off as prisoners and
steq to Dehly. The King then led his army
towards Rabery, and having wrested that country
from the son of Hoossein Khan Mewatty, gave it
‘over in charge to Mullik Humza. Syud Salim
dying on the march back to Dehly, his eldest son
received the title of Syud Khan, and the youngest
that of Shoojaa-ool-Moolk. They were allowed
also to retain the wealth their father had collected
during 30 years of power, amounting to a sum
“supposed to be equal to the private coﬂ'ers of' the
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i -K.i_{;gf.;_himseiﬂrand which, 'aéc'ordling'u_to the custom
- of Hindoostan, might have become the property of

the crown. - These indulgences, however, did not

secure the fidelity of the sons of Syud Salim, who

seit one Folad, a Toorky slave, to Surhind, to stir

up an insurrection, privately; in their name. They
~ had formed hopes,” it seems, that they might be
| sent with a foree to suppress the rebellion, and

thus have an opportunity to join the insurgents;

_but the plot being discovered, both these chicfs
4 We;l'-té-s_iqg__npris-;}_necfl,, and  Mullik Yoosoof and Ray
- Hubboo were  sent to Suchind, to vesume their
estates, and to suppress the disturbances. |

. Folad, eéntering info negotiation wi th the Dehly

chiefs, lulled them into security, ana sallying one

. night from his fort, attempted to surprise. their

camp.  He was so warmly received by the King’s

_troops, that the attack altogether falled 5 but this

circumstance did not deter Folad from making ans
other attack on the following night, supported bya

heavy fire from the works ; on which occasion, the
Dehiy troops fled panic-struck, leaving their ca mp
standing. On receiving intimation of this disaster,
the King marched from Dehly in person. The
rebel daily gathered strength ; and the King was
‘induced to dircet Imad-ool-Moolk from Mooltan,
Jh L and several other governors, to proceed

i::?zgg to Surhind.  The reinforcements having
Joined, the King remainedion the Sooi.

sutty river, and detached the greatest part of his

armiy to invest the fort of Surhind.  The rebel ) &

Folad now sent a message to the King, saying,
that if Imad-col:-Moolk were sent to him, with a
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 promise of paldOIi, he swould ddwer up the placc,
 This measure’ was acceded to on the King’s part ;
and Folad having met Imad-ool-Moolk without
the gate Was assured of the King’s pardon, and
promised, on his part, to surrender the fort of
Surhind ‘on the mnext day. One of Imad-ool
Moolk’s attendants: being acquainted with Tolad,
hinted to him prwately, that though Tmad-ook
Moolk was a man of honour, and would certainly
adhere to his promise, yet the King might not be
80 scr upuluizq. . Folad’s suspicions were raised,
and havmg abundance both of money and sup-
‘plies in the place, he determined to ho]d out tﬂ
the last, PR
The Iung, ﬁndmg the reduction of the place
would occupy time, and tlnnkmg so large an army
‘unnecessary for thie siege, permitted Imad-ool.
Moolk to return to his government of Mooltan; |
and leaving Istam Khan Lody, Kaly Khan, and Ray
) Feroze, with some Ameer Judeeda, to conduct the'
: ;:) % siege, the King retired to Dehly, Tolad held outsix
}ufo " months: he was greatly distressed; and sawno means:
‘of extricating himself but by an alliance with
 Ameer Sheikh Ally, governor of’ Kabul, on the part
of! ‘,harokh Mirza.  He accordingly despatched
i messangers to him, sohc:tmg ‘his assist-
| 3:: 183239 ance.  The King had taken no pains to
L  keep on good terms with the neighbour-
ing Mogul, who was induced to quit Kabul to aid
"t:*o]ad He was joined by the Gukkurs on crossing
the Beea, and r: wag('-d the country of those chiefs
who held estates in the Punjab, and who were con-
ducting the siege of Surhind. Ameer Sheikh Ally



. todecamp, Folad remuncrated his ally with a sun:

. equal to two laks of tunkas, and m ade him presents

. besides.  He also placed in his han ds his family,
ad by strengthening the fortifications of Surhin o
nd laying in provisions and ammunition, prepared
another siege.  Ameer Sheikh Ally, recrossing |

e Sutlooj, committed vast depredations in the

{ the wvalue of what he had  received from

- much that 40,000 Hindoos were I oy

ncc& tOSmh: n"g-;,_i and compelledthe 1“.’9}_*;;:1 -.'zirfriy |

jaby. rcahqmg by plunder one bundred-fold be..

ad. On reaching Labore, he imposed a con.
ution of one year's revenue on Mullik Sikun.

ohfa, Krom Lahore he proceeded towards
desolating that country also ;  inso-

L Ustun om0 ses

i been massacred, besides a great number carried

| laway prisoners, | mad-ool-Moolk, the govern A
. posted himself in aubush to surprise Ameer Sheikh
. Ally at Toolumba, hut he avoided the ambuscade
by going to Khuteebpoor: meanwhile I mad-ool-
- Moolk received the King’s orders to return, for
the protection of  Mooltan. ' This movewent enk

- couraged the enemy to march along the Ravy, and

~ to lay waste the country to within two coss of the
. eity of  Mooltan ; where Ameer Sheikh Ally de-
. Teated Imad.ool-Moolk, who endeavoured to arvest

. his progress. - From thence the Moguls advanced
. to Khyrabad, within six miles of Mooltan, and on.

' Rumzang, the next day, being: the 4th of Rumzan,
AL 898, ma(]e ‘an. unsuccessful assault on  the
May 29.  place ;. but lior onenned i u biaes
R and committed daily depredations, put-
_ting all whom they met to the sword. .

s e

.
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Fhe King, mf'ormed of' these tlaﬂﬁactlons sent

I'utu,h Khan, son of Moozuffur Khan Guzeratty,
with other nobles of chstmctmn, to reinforce Imad-
ool-Moolk, on which he marched out, and oﬂerud
battle to Ameer Sheikh Ally. A sanguinary en-
gwemu:t ‘ensued, in the commencement of which
‘the Moguls gamed some advantage ; but after the

- death of Futteh Khan of Guzerat, the King’s
Aroops, mspuod thh reveng&é fought more despe

. rately, and | gamed the victory. Ameer Sheikh

" Ally was. totally defeated ; and having lost all his
plunder, escaped with a few attendants only to Ka:

' bul ; his whole army being either killed or drowned.
in the Jheelum in their attempt to escape. Imad-
ool-Moolk pursued the fll("ltl\’ﬁ“i to Shewur, and
returmed to Mooltan, while' the nobles ‘who had
come to his aid repaired, by the King’s orders, to
Debly. 'Soon after this event, the Iung becoming
jealous of the popularity of Imad-ool-Moolk at
Mooltan, recalled him to coutt, Jusrut Gukkur
taking advmtaae ()f his absence, crossed the Jhee~
lum, the Ravy, and the Beea ; and attacked Mul-
lik Sikundur Tel vfa near Jalendur, whom he de-
ieated and made prisoner, together thh all hig

. treasure and baggage. Jusrut Gukkur now ad-

vanced and laid siege to Lahore, Ameer Sheikh
Ally was also instigated by Jusrut to make another
incursion ‘into Mooltan, and' having taken Too.
lumba by capitulation, he broke his pledge, plun-
dered the place, and put to death all the men able
to bear arms; he also burned the town, and car-
ried the wives and childien of the mhablmutb mto_
captivity, :
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Folad ef' Surhmd ta.kmg ‘\.dmntagc of these
events, marched out of his fort, and invading the
| _(,ount;ry \oft Rdy Feroze, defeated and qlc«*w him.
i . On the 1st of Jumad-ool- Awul 885,
Jlﬁ?glof " the King, therefore, took the mute of
AJH. 835, Lahore. Mulhk Survur-ool-Moolk was

Jan. 8. g su'ond time &ppmnted governor, and

(Al et recoived the command  of the advance

.'.;guaxd of his army.  The Vizier aluvuw at Sa-
'_--'mana, Jusrut rmqed thc slcge of Lo s ! and P

treated to the billy ;- Ameer Sheikts T 9,-‘, ! back
lon Kabul and Folad again shut s 3 ﬁ % BE N i
Surhind. 'Ihe ng depr;wed the' dier of the
| -“_govemment of Lahore a second time, and nomi-
. nated Noosrut Khan (morgdndai * to the office,
 himself encamping near Panipuf, on the banks of
| the Jumna. From hence he sent Imad-ool-Moolk,
with a p‘ut of the army, to suppress some insic
'rections about Gualiar, while the Vizier, Survur.
“ 00l-Moolk, being loft to bosmge Surlund the Kuw
returned to Dehly..
G the month of {eelug Jusrut (xuk-
kur advanced again to Lahore; and
| having commenced  hostilities  against
N0031 at Khan, the Iung was induced, in the year
836, to march from Dehly as far as Sa-
2:1; ?335 mana. | Intelho'ence was brought to him
i et that place. of the death of his mother,
' Nlukdooma Jehan, when he lmmedmtoly returined
With a few attendanta to the capnal dlld after Aol

2 eehu i
Augusr

*Thls ep;thet was gwen to thm chief, prohably, fmm hm»

'ha.vmg personally got the better of a wolf,

G
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| f‘mmmg the I uncml obsequles re]omed hu, army.
_ After his arrival in the camp he sudc&euly marched
 towards Mewat, conferri ing the government of La-
hore upon Mullik Alla-dad-Lody; who pwmmcd to.
expel Jusrut.  The Gukkur chief on hearing of the
King’s return, and being joined by a large body of
his tribe; was enabled to defeatﬂlh-dad Lody hefme
‘he reached Lahore. | | ;

. The King havmg Lacewed the news. of' thts (hs-
aster, anr"f- ‘5 that Amem Sheilkh Ally was coming
tOWd‘ Mg m__ :“, again took the route of Punjab,
sens’ il ﬁlm Imad-ool-Moolk to reinforce

B <y (0 '11*n.Jr bcsxegmg ‘Surhind.  On the appr oach
of Imad-col-Moolk, Ameer Sheikh Ally, who had
formerly msi‘uned o defeat from him, laid aside his

| intentions of ceming to Surhind, and letreated by

T forced ma,rchc,s towards Lahore, __wh;ch he sur-.

_ prised. Hearing, however, the King had

| f: ;,I f‘f’é’g reached Toolumba, Ameel Sheikh Ally
i Teft a garrison of 2000 men in L.;Lhmc,,
and 1etxea,te,d to Kabul, ravaging the country on

~ his route, and leaving his nephew Moozufluy Khan
in the fort of Shew ur. Mullik Sikundur Tohfa, who
had procured his release out of the hands of Jusrut
Gukkur, by the payment of 2 large sum of money,
was reinstated by the King in the govemment of’
nLahm e, Depcﬂpnm, and Jalendur ; upon which he
advanced and laid siege to Lahore, which surren-

‘dered by capitulation, and the garrison was per-
mijtted to retire to Kabul, The hmg now crossed.

the Ravy near Toolumba, and invested Shewur.

Muzaﬂm Khan defended the pldce for a Whole

B.I 0.}



' _ mdmth 3 but being hard pressed, he. capitulaizw, and,

. moredver, gave his daughter to thé King, and paid

Sl Imge rausowm for his liberty. The King left a part

s army at Depalpom, and with a select bady

ol .p .ueeeded in person to Mnolhn, where he visited
. the tombs of the saints. From thence he returned
in a few days to his camp. At this time he divested
. Mullik Sikundur Tohfa of the government of J.a-

. hore, and giving it to Imad-ool- Moolk, returned to

%‘.57_

. Dehly.  Being jealous of the power of the Vizier,
- Muilik Survur-ool-Moolk, the King unifpd, Kaly
~ Khan with him in the office of vizier, and v fatter
_being 'a man of superior abilities, soow gamed the
favour of lns sovtrelgn and the good wﬂl of the
', people
o Mullik vam-ooLMoolk dlssatlsﬁt,d ‘with this
‘arrangement, gained over Sudanund, the soti of
Gungoo Kutry, Meeran Sudr, deputy to the
chief secretary, Kazy Abd-oos-Sumud, and others,
‘who watched an opportunity for assassinating the

ng At this time, the King ordered a ity
. to be founded on the banks of the
R‘;g;’:ﬁ'ﬁ;‘ﬂf Jumna, and called it Moobarikabad,

| AdH. 839 ‘and made an excursion towards Surhind,

Oct.T0.  in order to take the diversion of the
ADa 1485  hase, | On the way, he received ad.
vice that Surhind was taken, and . the head of
the rebel Folad was presented to him, after
which the King returned to the new city. Here
he gamed intelligence that war had broken out

- between Ibrahim Shah Shurk} and Sooltan Hoow
. shung of Malwa, whose arraies were then near
Kalpy.  This information = promised to afford

 VOL. 1. M M
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the King an opportunity of expelling Ibrahim
~ Shah Shurky from his dominions ; e accordingly

gave orders to collect his army, and caused his tents
to be pitched outside the city of Dehly. A few days
' elapsed in the necessary organisation of his forces,

‘during which time the King continued to visit the

new works : he was, however, little apprehensive

of the event which séon after took place, never

 having given offence to his nobility, except in

changing or removing them from their governments

when they mishehaved. B _

| Ruiub ¢ On the 9th of the month of Rujub,
by S j . .

it 889, | in  the year 83Y, according to custom,

Jan, 28, he went to worship at a mosque lately
‘A 4850 b oile in the new: city, with only a few

attendants.  On which occasion, Meeran Sudr,

and Kazy Abd-oos-Sumud, with a band of Hindoos
clothed in armour, entered the mosque; while

Sudanund, the son of Gungoo Kutry, with another

party of Hindoos, kept guard without, to prevent
people from either going in or coming out. Al~
‘though the King perceived the conspirators were

in armour, hetook no immediate notice of them ;
till at length Sidpal, one of the Hindoos, drawing
his 'sword, rushed on bim, and the rest following
his example, they basely murdered this worthy and
| ‘excellent Prince.  Meeran Sudr, instantly quitting
g the spot, repaired to the house of the Vizier, and
: acquainted him, according to agreement, with what
had happened; and Survur-col-Moolk, who had
previously arranged matters with Mahomed, one of
the grandsons of Khizr Khan, raised that Prince
~ to the throne.
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The ng 5 50, % raised‘ to the tkméze by the mmwm.-—-ﬂ The
-' ng s murderers are created. governors qf provences. = Dis-
affection of the. qﬁcers--—-!nmwecﬁzon in Sumbhul. — Kaly
Khan  sent to suppress it - he JUSRS the insurgents, and
marches to the capital. — The minister is slain.—- Kaly Khan
- ministers — The murderers of the late King punished.
Rebetlion in Mooltan, — Bheilole) Khan Lody assumes inde-
 pendencein Lahore. — Defeats the King's troops sent aguingt
- him. — Insurrection in vl quarters. — The King of Joonpoor
seizes somie of the King's districts. — The King of Mabva
leads an army against Deﬁl_y. — Bheilole Khan Lody is called
fzn to assist the Ki ing. = The Malwa army retreats, — Dis-
agreement between the King and Bheilole Lody——t}w latter
guus the gourt —— returns and stzege.s Dehly for six moﬂtﬁs e
- The ng falls .m.{ wee hs deaths .

ACCORDING to the practlce of the universe, which
cannot  subsist wxﬂibut order; on the same day
which gave to Moobarik his death-wound, his son,
the Prince Mahomed, was seated on the throne.
The ungrateful 'zssassm, Survanool Moolk, vizier,
received the title of Khan Jehan; and having
secured the King’s treasure, the regalia, and
other effects, he dismissed all the old ministers
from office, and appointed new ones, more suited
to his views, '
Kaly Khan, the deputy ﬁzwr, 'md
other chiefs in the camp, called a coun-
“cil, on hearing of the King’s death, and

A H. 339-
.Ao D. 14'35.



o rpsqlved mther than incur the horrors of il war,

. for the present to submit o the new King, and to

- wait for a more favouxable opportunity of taking

revenge on the conspirators 3 so they accordingly
came into the city, and paid their respects to Syud

Mahomed. The first preferment which was made,

in order to promote the Vizier’s views, was the

elevation of the Hindoo gonspirators. = Sudanund

and Sidpal were raised to the government of

Byana, Amroha, Narnoul, and Kohram, and other
pergunas in the Dooab. Meeran Sudr was dig-
nified thh the title of Mpym-qol Moolk, and re-
ceived a considerable jagier, The son'of Syud

Salim was epnobled by the title of Khan-Azim

Syeed Khan, and the government of several  dis-
tricts was assigned' to him ; while the officers of’
-~ the late King were persecuted and some even lost
their lives nnder false pretences.

| .Ru b One Ranoo, a slave of the szler, be-
, ub 12,

A 1,839, ing nominated collector of the revenues
Jan.81. . of Byana, endeavoured to obtain poss
7.2 1485, session of the fort, but Yoosoof Khan
Lody opposed, and slew him. At the same time,
also, some of the nobles of the late 1emn, who had
served under Khizr Khan, perceived a design to
deprive them of their jageers; and the following
chiefs, Mullik Joomuu, governor of Budaoon ;
Mullik Alla-dad Lody, governor of Sumbhul;
Meer Ally Goozeratty, and Ameer Khan ’Iooxk
combined, and went into open rebellion, Mullik
Survur-ool-Maolk, deceived by the behaviour of
hls deputy, Kaly Khan, intrusted him with the

- MM 3 -
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S
command of the army to suppress the revolt, and
Syeed Khan, Sudanund, and the Vizier’s son,, Yoo- .
e spof-Khan, went along with him. On arriving at
Iy the village of Birrun, Kaly Khan, who had resolved
to take revenge on Sudanund, and Yoosoof Khan,
for the murder of the King, informed Mullik Alla-
dad-Lody of his intention. The latter, therefore,
'made no movement to.oppose the royalists, « Kaly
Khan’s design, however, became known to the
Vizier, who sent Mullik Hooshyar, one of his own
slaves, with an additional force, as if to reinforce
Kaly Khan, but in reality with secret instructions
I to watch his motions. ' Kaly Khan, how-
l : i :: ?;35 ever, united his forces with those of
: Mulhk Alla-dad-Lody previously to the
arrival of Mullik Hooshyar, who was in conse-
quence deterred from approaching, and Yoosoof
Khan' and Sudanund fled to Dehly.
Kaly Khan, together with the malcon-
[ tents, now marched to Dehly, which
'. they reached on the last day of Rumzan.
; In this dilemma, the Vizier, Survur-ool-Moolk,
took post in the citadel of Siry, wherein he stood a
siege for three months 5 but the party of Kaly Khan
daily gaining new partisans, the Vizier was reduced
to the last distress. The King also perceiving
that his own affairs would be ruined if he adhered to
the Vizier, opened negotiations with the besiegers,
and only waited an opportunity either of making
his escape, or of cutting off his minister. The
Vizier, discovered the plot, and determined to an-
ticipate the King's intentions; accordingly, on

Rum zan 80.
April 15.
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Moh 0ty | thie 8th of Mohursiim, burvm 001 Molk,
a.m840.  aided by the sons of Meeran Sudr, and
| Juiyes. . some of his followers, broke into the
| -f“ i “‘36' ' royal apartments with drawn swords, in
“order to put the King to death. The latter, hav-
ing intimation of their design, placed a guard in
'_'-readmess to eounteract their project, which, on
. a eoncerted signal, rushed: out on the conspira-
T _.'-_-tms, who took to flight. | /The Vizier, Survur-
- ool-Moolk, was cut to picces as he was passing the
~ door; and the sons of Meeran Sudr, with the rest
i ofithe ‘assassing, | bemg afterwards taken, were
~also . slain, while Mullik ‘Hooshyar, and Mullik
- Moobarik, who were concerned in the plot, were
; 'pubi'cly executed.  The. Kutries, and: ‘other ad-
. herents of the VL?ier, apprehcnuvc of time King’s
- vengeance, rose in arms, and conipelled him to de-
fend ! the palace. ' Thus situated, he caused the
. Bagdad gate to be thrown open to the besiegers,
who, rushmg in, committed a dreadfil slaughter on
the rebds, till they were entirely subdued ; while
- such as were taken alive were bound hands and feet
and sacrificed at the tomb of the late Syud Mooba.
vik, ' Kaly Khan andthe other chiefs took the oath
~ of allegiance on the next day, a second time, to
- Byud Mahamed when the oftice of vizier was con-
ferred on | Kaly Khan, with the title of Kumal
Khan 5 and Muliik Joomun, receiving the title of
G hazy Mullik, was gratified with a jageer. Mullik
Alla-dad-Lody refused a ‘titie for himself, but
~ begged that that of Duria Khan lmght be conferred:
~on his brother; and the rest of the nobles were
confirmed i their several offices. Peace being
MM 4
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restored at Dehly, the King, by the advice of his

counsellors, made a campaign towmrds Meottan,

and encamping near Moobarikabad, gave orders :
to collect his army from all the neighbouring pro-
vinces.  Many of the chiefs being intimidated,

delayed to repau to head-quarters, till Imad-ool-

Moolk, arriving from Mooltan, aided by his power

and influence the royal aunthority, and shortly
after the other provincial governors joined the
camp, and were honoured with dresses, and other
marks of favour. The King now proceeded to-

wards Mooltan ; and marching forseme time at the

fead of his troops, visited the tombis! of the saints
at Ajoodhun, and returned to his capital.

In the same year (A. H. 840) the King malched. !
towards ' Samana, and detached a portion of the

army against Jusrat Gukkur, whose country was
given over to plunder, after which the King returned
toDehly. There he abandoned himself'to pleasure,
and totally neglf,cted the affairs of his government.
This conduct soon affected the administration of
affairs, discontent pervaded every quarter, and an
insurrection broke out in Mooltan among the
~ Afghans, called Lunga. At this time, also, Bhei-
.}ole Lody, who  after the death of his uncle,
Islam Khan Lody, had usurped ‘the goveri.
ment of Surhind, took possession of thorc,
Depalpoor, and all the country as far south as
Paniput.  The King receiving intelligence of
these events, sent his whole army against Bhei-
lole, who was driven into the hills,  and many
chiefs of distinction fell! in their vetreat. = Bhei-
Jole Lody, however, recruiting his army after

e A —— - — T —— R — et i e 5




‘for the death

- the myal f‘omm had | wx?hdmwn, ,mteak posses-

expelled.  The King, on 'this occasion, sent

. but he was defeated, and compelled to retreat to

g ':-‘liahly, ‘on which  Bheilole Lody. wrote to the

ng, that if he, wculd pnt Hts«mm Kh;m to death,

.....

i "_'-rebelhon, he wouid ]ay dowﬂ' hvs: ATy,

. The King was 8o weak as to listen to this
: ".-armgant ‘proposal, and accardmrrly gave orders
‘Hlissam Khan.  He also deprived

wof the office of vizier, and con.

Kumal 0@1-M

ferving it on Hureed Khan, appointed a deputy
with the title of Hissam Khan, = The governors of
‘the provinces, perceiving the King’s 1mbcolle con-

duct, predicted bis downfall, and endeavoured to

‘sion of the countries from whence he had been

QL
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| Hissam Khan, the Viziers |deputy, against him;

secure 'their own independeuce.  The farmers

and -_zem_m.darb,_ foreseeing the co'nvu‘lsions that

were likely to ensue, withheld the revenues, in.
‘hopes of retammg them in the general counfusion, |
This ‘state of affairs was tavourable for the en.

croachments of the neighbouri ing p}"lll(‘(.,b, and Ibra-
him Shah Shurky .accordmgly_ seized ' on several
- districts adjoining to his dominions, while Sooltan

'__’Mahmood Khiljy; King of Malwa, making an

‘attempt con Dehly, in the year 844, ad-
A, M, 844 2

| vanoced within two coss of the city.  Syud

A.D. 141\0 . ¢
. Mahomed, panic-struck, sent an em-
bassy to Bheilole Lody, entreating his assistance;
and he accordingly marched to the capital with
20,000 horsemen arrayed in armour.  Though the
ngs army was greatly superior to the enemy,



| he refused to take the field; but giving over the it
charge of it to his oﬁicers, Iuchlf' remamed in the i
palace, B '

‘Sooltan Mahmood Kh:l.)y, on undemtandmg that -

the King of Dehly was not present with his army,
thought his absence was intended as an affiont, and
in order to resent it he gave the command of his own
troops to his sons Gheias-ood-Deen, and Kuddur
‘Khan. The armies of Dehly and Malwa having

| enéao‘ed the troops of the former gave way, leav-
ing Bheilole Khan Lody’s division alone to dispute
the field, which he maintained with datermmed
resolution, till the fugitives, ashamed of their con-
duet, returned to the action. Night, however,
coming on, the victory remained undecided. Itis
stated that Sooltan Mahmood Khiljy was alarmed
by 'a dream on that night, and hedring ot the
following morning that Ahmud Shah Guzeratty
was advancing against Mando, became desirous
of concluding a peace, though shame prevented
him from making the first overtures. = At the same
time, Syud Mahomed, with less' reason, and con-
trary to the advice of his ministers, gave himself
up to fear, and sent ambasasadors with" presenta to
his rival proposing terms. =~
 Sooltan  Mahmood hhlljy, ovegoycd at these
overtures, hastened the accommodation, and quit~
ting Dehly left the field. Bheilole Lody, whose
contempt’ for his sovereign was now complete,
boldly aspired to the throne, and marching
out of the city with his own troops in pur-
suit of Sooltan Mahmood of Malwa, attacked
and defeated him, and took all his baggage ;

SYUD MAHOMI‘.Ds
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'.f'm which service Syud Mahomed, unsasp;cmus
e his. demgns, conferred on him the title of Khan

| -'Jehan, and even adopted him as his son.

PN n. 845

._"-_of t:he ngs f’d.voul strenrrthened the hands of
| Bheilole, who baving added considerably to his

'.:army by numerous budseq of Afghans, iostead of

~ attacking Jusrut. Gukkur, gained him over to his
views, and seized several of the King’s districts. .

A length, marching his army against Dehly, he

| .bemeged it for some months, but for the present'-

- was obliged to abandon his enterprise.
. IThe King’s power decaying rapidly, the zemin-

dm‘s of Byana. placed themselyes under the go-

e vemment of Sooltan Mahmood Khiljy of Malwa ;
| o and Syud Mahomed falling sick, he
died a nataral death in' the year 849,
leaving behind him  the char acter of a

A w849,
A 0, 1444,

weak and digsolute prince. He rem‘md_ 12 years

. and some months ; and his son Alla-oud«Deen sug-
. ceeded him on the throne,

S In the yeau 848, the Iung marched _
i Ao 1841 L to Samana, and confirming Bheilole
) Lody in the government of Lahore and
- ) Depalpoox, ‘which he had usu:ped authomecl hsm
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i Tke son qf ﬂw I\aia ng, ascends ﬂae ﬁ?zrane ki _pmceeds to fea'uca'_ j
Byana — refreats to Dehly - folls into contempt — Inlerest-
ing account of the Mahomedan vule in India, — ,'I e torri-

torial limits of each principality described. — The King ves
moves kis court fo Budaoon — altempts L0 put his minister to
. death, — The latter flies to Dehly, and invites Bheilole Lody
o ocmpy ite~ Bheilole arrives — deceives H:e King as to his
motive — is arfop!;,d by the Ixmg as his heir — Alla-ood-Deen
abdicatés his throne —~ und i content to live at Budaoen. =

Az 00n-Deey, thu son of Synd Mahomed
ascended the throne on the demise of his father,
and all the chieftains, excepting Bheilole Lody,
took the oath of allegiance. The new King, how-
ever, was in no condition to resent this mark of con-
tempt; butbaving collected an army in the beginping
.t of the year 850, he marched to recover
i i (o0~ Byana, While on his route, he received
~ advices that Ibrahim Shah Shurky was
i adva.ncmg towards Debly, which, though fa.]ee,
brought the _ng back to his capital. Humeed
Khan, the Vizier, ventured to remonstrate on his
acting on 5o vague a report; but the observation
brought upon the Vizier the displeasure of his
master,
This step at once proved fatal to the King’s re-
putation ; and the meanest of the people did not
hesitate to say publicly, that he was a weaker
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AN L g than his father. 'O-In' thei-fb_llo.bving
W fﬂ.f year he marched to Budaoon, where he
e . remained some time employed in laying

ot gardens, Dbuilding pleasurc houses, and mak-

| ing entertainments. Fancying the ait of Buda.
' oom agreed better with his health, he expressed
. aninclination to make that city ‘his residence,
. from which the Vizier endeavoured in  vain to
 divert him, /i i

'-‘Hiﬁ-c}(ms'tanj-waé,* at this period, divided into
 Separate principalifies.  The Deccan, Guzerat,
Malwa, J oonpoor, and Bengal, had each its inde-

pendent king.  Punjab, Depalpoor, ‘and Surhind,

a8 far south as Paniput, formed the territory of
" ‘Bheilole Khan Lody ; M-elﬂowly*a.nd the country
_ within seven coss of Debly, as far as the Seray
Liido, was in the hands of Ahmud Khan Mewatty;
Sumbhul, even fo the suburbs of Dehly, was ‘occir-
- pied by Duria Khan Lody; Kole Jalesur; ia the
 Dooab, by Eesa Khan Toork, and Rabery and its

dependencies by Kootub Khan Afghan ; Kampila

- and Pattialy by Raja Purtab Sing, and Byana by
. Dawood Khan Lody; so ‘that the ‘city of Dehly,

with a very small tract of country, alone belonged

' to the King, *

~ Bheilole Lody, about this time, made another
~ attempt upon the capital, but was not more suc-
- cessful than before. The King, as soon a§ telieved
from this danger, began to consider of the means to

% This description of the territorial divisions is extremely
useful ¢ besides these, Kandeish, Bind, and Mooltan had each
its separate Mahowedan king, ' :
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recover part of his lost empire, and held a con-
sultation with Kootub Khan, Eesa Khan, and
Purtab Ray. These clm.,fs, desirous to weaken

him still more, told him that the nobles were dis-

gusted with his vizier, Humeed Kban; and that
if he were removed from office, and imprisoned,
‘they were ready to support him, and did not doubt
that the affairs of his government would assume

a more favourable aspect. Syud Alla-ood-Deen,

becoming the dupe of those traitors, imprisoned and

'disgraced the minister, and immediately ordered
preparations for removing the court to Budaoon ;
from which not all the remonstrances of his best
friends could restrain him, though they represented,

in a strong light, how impolitic it was, at such a

Juncture, to qult Dehly.

Alla-ood-Deen, accozdmgly, in ' the
year 852, marched to Budaoon, leaving
‘Hissam Khan in the government of
Dehly. When he arrived at his new capital, Koo-
tub Khan and Purtab Ray, waiting on the King,
representec ‘that as long as the Vizier was alive,
the chiefs could not be induced to trust themselves
at court. The King was thus prevailed on to order
the Vizier’s death ; but the Vizier’s brother, having
discovered his intention, found means, with the
assistance of some of his friends, to release Hu-
meed Khan, who escaped to Dehly. There he
took possession of all the King’s effects, and sent
the females of the royal household out of the
city. ;

Alla-ood-Deen deferring, by frivolous delays
and excuses of weather and unlucky days, his march

A, H._ 852
A, D, 1448,



’ 'tﬂ Dehly, allowed time for the Vizier to mvxte Bhei-
lole Lody to assume the government. Bheilole,
‘seizing the opportunity, amused the King by writing
 to him that he was on his march to chastise the

o Vizier ; but having arrived, he quietly took posses-

i sion of the capital, and was proclaimed King.
o This event occurred in the year 854 ;

R | for form’s sake, allowed to be read in
i ha Khootba as usual. . Bheilole, leaving his son,
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though the name of Alla-ood-Deen was,

Khwaja Baye?eed in Dehly, marched in person to

..Depa]puor, to or ganise, at his convenience, his At
.ghan army, While thus engaged, he wrote to Alla-

«ood-Deen, that his only motive for securing the
~ capital was to expel the Vizier. To this letter
" he received for answer, that the King bhaving

_adopted Bheilole as his son, he (Alla.ood-Deen)
should ever esteem him as his brother; and form.
 ally abdicated the throne in his fayour, on con-
dition of his bemng pe.rmitted to reside quietly in pos-
“session of Budaoon. Bheilole Lody from that hour
rejected the name of Syud Alla-ood-Deen from

~ the Khootba, and publicly assumed all the insignia

© of royalty.  Alla-ood- Deen remained at Budaoon
- unmolested till his death, which happened in the
year 883 (A.D. 1478): his reign in  Dehly

‘being seven years, and his retirement at Budaoon

nearly 28,
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O;Eg‘i}:'éf z?a'é'__.;ao_wer of Bheilole -w_pe'rn'zité Humeed Khan, the
ter, " fuunet s = b I'lengif?x; Tee
. adopts' @ modexof seiing his person, without causing blood-

late King's minister, to resume his funcii

| shed, and compels him to withdraw Sfrom piiblic life. — The

“chigfs of the petty principalities around Dehly refuse to acs.

VL  kmowlgdge Bheilole Lody-— Bheilole establishes liis supremacy

\gver all but the state of Joonpoor, with which he contends

'I: 5 ":'*i-'-‘;'-"éits'i'éhg the rgz'gn_ of three kings, and e'uéntudffy congers it.‘-fl—'

" Bhieilole proceeds to Gualiar == fulls sich <= yelrrns towards
Dehly < anticiputes his) death e divides his kingdom into
o chigfships ——his son, Nigam Khan, is nominated his successor
| — The kingdom of Joonpoor is conferred on his son Barbik :

e Kurrn, Manulkpoor Us granted to Alum : v Blyraich to his

“nephew Kaln Phar s — Luknow and Kalpy are bestowed on

velative, Agim Hoomayoon : — Dehly, and the rést of the terri- |

toriys belong to his Son and successor; Nigam. — Bheilule dies

" onhis journey to Dehly, after a reign 488 years.— His cha-

racters = Description of his government,

- T is related that in early times the tribe of Afghans,
- forming themselves into & commercial community,
~carried on t,;r:a_’deI’pe_t‘vs{éé__t_l-_l’-ersia and Hindoostan,

" 1n the time of Feroze Toghluk, Mullik Beiram

Lody, the grandfather of Bheilole, being possessed
of wealth, separated from his elder brother ; and
entering the service of Mullik Murdan Dowlut,

raised” himself to the government of Mooltan.

: Mullik Beiram * had five sous, viz. E\flullik Sooltan,

% The Afghans claim to be of Jewish origin ; and tlmugh _

this belief, the proofs are incom-

many of their customs favoug this
‘peculiarities, is that of calling

plete.  Among other Hebre
their chiefs Mullik.

—
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/Mulllk Kaly, Mullik Feroze, Mullik Mahomed, and
- Muliik Khwaja, all of whoin, on the death of theu
b 'f‘ather, remamed in Mooltan,
" When Khizr Khan was appomtcd to the gow.rnq
mem: of Mooltan, Mullik Sooltan received the
mand of his Afghan troops. In the action
ch' Khizr Khan fought, with Mulloo Yekbal
. Khan, Mullik Sooltan had the good fortune to
slay Yekbal Khan with his own hand; on which
account he became a favourite with I_{qur; Khan,
. and was appointed  governor of Surhind, with
the title of Islam Khan, while his brothers pat-
-timpated also in his good fortune. One of these,
Mullik Kaly, the fqther of Bheilole, whose proper
name is Bulloo, had a district bestowed on him
by his brother. « The wife of Kaly Khan, his own
cousin, was smothered by the fall of her house
‘when pregnant. Her husband caused her to be
instantly opened, and saved the life of the infant,
‘who was called Bulloo. = Mullik Kaly having sub-
* . sequently been killed in an action with the Neeazy
Afghans, Mullik Bheilole joined his uncle Islam
- Khan, at Surbind ; and, being much distinguished
# in battle, he received the hand of Islam Khan’s
. daughter in marriage. Islam Khan was a chief
of sweh consequence, that he retained 12,000
Afghans, mostly of his own tribe, in his ser vice,
At his death, though lie had full-grown children
~of his own, Islam I{hcm made Bheilole his heir, and
 he succeeded to the command of the tr oops. On
this oceasion the Afghans divided into three part:es 3
~ one of which adhered to Mullik Bheilole ; one to
e 100 7 AEHE NN
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Mulhk Feroze, the brother of Islam Khan, an offi-
cer in the service of the King of Dehly, and the
other to Mullik Kootub Khan, the son of Islam
Khan : Bheilole, having most talent, found means
to weaken his rivals, and gradually to stmngtheu
his own party.

‘Mullik Kootub Khan, stun;, thh envy, repalred :
to Dehly, and acqnainted the King, Synd Ma-
homed, that the Afghans at Surhind were estabhsh-
ing a power, which, unless soon checked, would
sabvert his throne. The Vizier, Mullik Sikundur
‘Tohfa, was accordingly directed to repair, with an
army, to that quarter, and to require the Afghan
chiefs to appear at court, in failure of which he was
authmlsecl to expel them from Surhind. Jusrat
Gukkur also was instigated to take arms against
them ; so that in the end they were driven to the
hillg, bubsequent to this, Mullik Feroze Lody,
leaving his son Shaheen Khan, and his nephew
Mullik Bhexlole, with his army, proceeded with
some attendants to the camp of Mullik Sikundur
Tohfa and Jusrut Guhkur, under the most solemm
assurances of good faith; but at the instigation
of his nephew Kootub Khan, Mullik Feroge was
seized, and his attendants cut off. After this
event a part of the army was detach(‘d to reduce
Mullik Bheilole 3 but he lmvmg retreated into
the hills with the women and children, ensured
his own safety, though Shaheen Khan was over.
taken aud slain, and A great parf of his, tribe
destroyed.

After the death of Shaheen Khan, his head was
cut off and carried to Jusrut Gukkur, and plaged
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before his féti:her, Mullik Feroze, to recogmse. The
latter at first denied his son ; but after hearmg from
those who attended of the galiant manner in which
he had behaved, he burst into tears, and said,
“¥es, it is my son ; but I would not recognise his
. % countenance till convinced he had don‘e' honour
¢ to/'his tribe.”” | He observed, at the same time,
% My nephew Bheilole could not have been in the
¢ battle, or he would hiive been slain also. But
“ he lives; and if 50, he will revenge the death of
“myboy”' e
When Jusrut Gukkur retu*ed 10 PunJa?), Mullik
Bheilole collected  the remainder of his tribe,
and began to levy contributions : being extremely
liberal in dividing the spoil among his troops,
he  became very popular, and his followers in
ereased.  Some time after, Mullik Feroze made
his escape, and joined Mullik Bheilole;  while
Kootub Khan, repenting of his former conduet,
became reconciled to his relations, and joining the
‘Afghans, Mullik Bheilole headed the party whiclt
subsequently invaded Surhind, and occupied that
province.  On receiving intelligence of thig event,
the King detached IIIS‘!&I‘(\ Khan, his vizier, against
the Afginm ; but Mullik Bheilole gave hitu bat-
‘tle, and defeated him.. They 1elate, that when
Mullik Bheilole was & youth, he was permitted
to pay his respects to a celebrated Dervish of Sa-
mana, whose name Was Shexda, While sitting in a

* Afghan revenge has become proverbial in India. 1t is
sald, a man is never safe from the revené,e of an elephant, a
nag (the cnbra de capello snake), ot an Afghan, SR

N N2
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-reSpectfnl posture before the Dervish, the latter
called out aloud, in an enthusiastic manner,
« Who will give 2000 rupees for the kingdom
¢ of Dehly?? Bheilole told him he had only
1600 rupees in the world; which he ordered
his servant to bring immediately, and present to the
Dervish. ' Having accepted the money, the Der-
vish laid his hands on Bheilole’s head, and said,
o Shah-l:lash Béta 7% llterally ¢ Be thou king,

¢ my son.”” The ¢companions of Bheilole ndlcu]ed
him much for this aetion ; but he replied, ¢ That
¢ if the thing came to pass, he had made a cheap
< purchase ; if not, the blessing of a holy man
¢t could do no harm.” = After Mullik Bheilole had
defeated the Vizier, he'wrote to the King, as has
been before related, aseribing the whole blame of
his rebellion to the minister’s conduct towards the
Afghans; on which the King, as has been shown,
basely cut off the Vizier, and permitted Mullik
Bheilole according to his promise, to visit him.
This meeting enabled Bheilole to carry on his in-
trigues at court, where he managed his aflairs so
well, that he was confirmed in the government
of Surhind, together with some other districts in

~ its vicinity. i

~ When Sooltan Mahnmod Kb:hy of Malwa
brought an army aguinst Delily, Mullik Bhetlole
being called on to join the King, he appeared at

# This is the ordivary mode of' expressing great approbation
in India, both to men and animals ; and aceording to the idiom
of the language, may be s:mply rendered by our expression,
“ Well dune i
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the head of 20,000 Afghan cavalry, with which he
. pursued Sooltan Mahmood Khiljy on his retreat,
and plundered his army on the day after he quitted
- Dehly, for which service he obtained the title of
Khan Xhanan. On that occasion, Bheilole returned
| to Suthind, and instantly began to lay hands on
the King’s districts, contiguous to his own estates,
. such as Lahore, Depalpoot, and Soonam ; not con.
tent, with which, he marehed his army boldly
against the King himself.  On reaching Dehly, he
laid siege to it, but being foiled in his attempt, he
was induced to retire to Surhind.  Meanwhile,
the King dying suddenly, his son, Alla-ood-Deen,
~ ascended the throne. After some ‘years, as has
been related, Humeed Khan, the Vizier, secing
the declining state of public affairs, invited Bhei-
lole Lody i Surhind, who ascended the throne,
and assumed the title of king, -

At the time of his accession, Bheilole had nine
sons, whose, names were Bayezeed, Nizam (who
afterwards ascended the throne under the title of
Sikundur), Barbik, Alum (who also became king

under the appellation of Alla.ood-Deen), Jumal,
Yakoob *, Futteh, Moosa, and Julal, Among the
chiefs of distinction in the state no fewer than
thirty-six persons were either blood-relations, or
111t1mately connected WIth the new King,

* The Hebrew names of‘ Dawaod Moosa, Yakooh (David,
Moses, Jacob) and others, which frequently occur among the
Afghans, is a circurastance in favour of their Jewish origin.
A fact the more remarkable, if the reader should take the
trouble of observing how seldomy theso names ocour ﬁm,ong
the Moslems of any nations unconnected with the Afghans.

NN 3



government upon him, still possessed great influ-

ence. Bheilole treated him for some time with
much respect; but being one day in Humeed

Khan’s house, at an entertainment, he ordered

the - Afghans, whom he carried with him, to

assume the manners of ill-bréd persons, and act
the part of clowns, in order that the Vizier
might be less on his guard ageinst them. When
they came into company, some of them tied their
shoes 'to their girdles, and others put them up in
the recesses of the apartment; and on Humeed
Khan’s asking them the reason, ‘they replied, that

they were afraid of having them stolen, . When they

had taken their seats, one of them began to praise
the flowers of the carpet, and the brightness of their
colours, saying he would like extremely to have
such a carpet, to send home, and make caps for

his boys.  Humeed Khan laughed, and told him, -

he would give him wvelvet or brocade for the
purpose. When the plates and boxes of perfumes
were laid before them, some began to besmear their
whole body with the finest otto of roses ; others to
lick it up ; and othersidevourcd whole garlands of
flowers 3 while the pan leaf was eagerly scrambled
for, and greedily eaten up. Some having swal.
lowed large pieces of lime with their pan, burned
their mouths, made wry faces, and vociferated
aloud, ' This conduct astonished the servants and
the guests, who ascribed it to their ignorance as
foreigners, that had never lived at court ; while the
King and the Vizier were conyulsed with laughter,*

# No one but a person intimately acquainted with the cere-

BHEILOLE LODY AFGHAN, @I i

b ‘Humeed Khan, the Vizier, who conferred the
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| 'The Vizier imagined that this .s_\:ene"proceeded
from the King’s humour, who, in bringing such
‘people with htm, had resolved to make merry.in his

house, but had no suspicion it originated from

design,  The next visit the King paid to Humeed
Khan, a great number of his attendants were ad-
‘mitted ; but as Humeed Khan had « still greater
'number of his own friends within the court-yard,
it became necessary for the King to gain admission
for more of his peaple, who were stopped without
Dy the guards.  ‘The King having before instructed
‘them how to proceed, they began to wrangle loudly
with the guards, and threw out bitter invectives
against the King, for permitting ‘them to be ex-
~ cluded, swearing that they respected their friend
'the Vizier, and would see him. -

" Humeed Khan, on hearing the noise, ordered
'the gates of the ‘court-yard to be thrown open, and
directed as many of the Afghans as could cone
veniently be admitted to be allowed to come in.
‘This point being gained, the King gave the signal,
‘and his people, ch‘awmg their swords, told Humeed
Khan’s servants to remain quiet, and they should
~suffer no injury: on whick, two or three seizing

“the Vizier, bound him fast, The King then told
him, that gratitude was a security for his life;

monious decorum of a Mahomedan party of rank and fashion
~can enter into the absurdity of the scene which Fevishta hus
described, nor would such a person even feel its full force who
‘had not seen the extravagant mistakes committed by Afghans
of the present day, even, when' first: cammg- to' India from
Pishawur.
N N 4¢
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but it was necessary he should withdraw from bu-
siness, and spend the rest of his days in retirernent.
i _ The same year *, being the 855th of
A« 855 the Hijra, haying intrusted Dehly to
A D, 1451,
the charge of his eldest son, Bayezeed
I&han, the King marched towards Mooltan, both
to employ his ar my, and to regulate the affairg of
the western provinces. Some' of his officers, dis-
satisfied with him, deserted and joined Mahmood
Shah Shurky, King of Joonpoor; who, dmmg the
. absencé of Bheilole Padshah, in the be-
g 14’92 ginning of the year 850, advanced and
laid siege to Dehly; but Bheilole, hasten-
ing from Depalpoor, did not halt till he reached
Perah, within thirty miles of his capital. v
Mahmoud Shah Shurky detached .80, 000 horse,
and 30 elephants, under the command of Fugteh
‘Khan Hiryy to oppese him. = An action ensued, in
which Kootub Khan Lody, the son of Islam Khan,
who excelled in archery, shot an arrow into the
forehead of one of Futteh Khan Hirvy’s elephants.
The animal, becoming outrageous, broke the line ;
and Kootub Khan, coming in contact with Duria
Khan Lody, one of the malecontent chiefs who
‘had joined Malimood &hah Shurky, thus addressed
him: ¢ For shame, Duria Khan ; where is your
‘ honour, thus to wage war against your own kin-
“ dred, and to lay siege to the city of Dehly, which
¢ contains your family, when you ought rather to
# defend it against your natural enemies? "

# In the contests described in this reign, the reader will do
well to consult & good map of the Dooab,
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¢ Pursue me not,” said Duria Khan, “and I am
“ gones™ he immediately wheeled offy followed by
all the Afghans in Futteh Khan Hirvy’s army.
. The other troops, thus deserted, gave: way, and

Futteh Khan was taken prisoner; but this chief,

with his own hand, had just killed Pritvy Ray, the
' brother of Kurun Ray : the latter, therefore, struck
. off Futteh Khan’s head out of revenge, and sent

it to Bheilole., The news of this defeat induced

‘Mahmood Shah Shurky to raise the siege of Dehly,

. and to retreat with precipitation to Joonpoor.
|\ The power of Bheilole Lody being once firmly
established, he began to think of conquests,  His
first movement was towards Mewat ; where Ahmud
Khan Mewatty, submitting to his authority, seven
purgunas were wrested from him, but he was
permitted to hold the remainder ' ag tributary,
From Mewat the King marched to Birun; where
‘Duria Khan Ledy, governor of Sumbhul, pre-
- sented him with seven handsome elephants, and
- acknowledged his supremacy. From Birup, the
King proceeded to Kole; and confirming Fesa
Khan in the government of that district, he con-
tinued his route to Boorhanabad, the management
~of which was intrusted to Moobarik Khan Lohany,
- while Meinpoory Bhooigam was delivered  over to
Purtab Ray, ' On reaching Rabery, Kootub Khan,
the son' of Hoossein Kban Afghan, shut the gates
of ‘the fort, and at first refused the King admit.
tance ; but shortly after, having made his submis-
sion, he was reinstated in his authority, and Bhei.
lole marching from thence to Etawa, confirmed the
former governor of that district also in his office.
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Ak this time an officer called Joona Khan, quitting
the court ini disgust, joined Mahmood  Shah
‘Shurky, from whom he received the government
of Shumsabad ; and having instigated his new
saster to make another attempt on Dehly, Mab.-
mood Shah Shurky advanced to Etawa, where the
Dehly army was encamped. On the first day both
kings sent) out ‘parties to reconnoitre, but no
engagement took place; and on the next day, they
began to retreat, having agreed, in the mean time,
that Bheilole Lody should: keep possession of ‘all
the coumtries belonging to Dehly, in the reign of
Syud Moobarik, and that Mahmood Shah Shurky
¢hould retain all the possessions held by Ibrahim
Shah Shurky; that Bheilole should, on the one
hand, restore all the elephants taken in the action
with Futteh Khan Hirvy, and that Mahmood Shah
Shurky should dismiss Joona Khan from his go-
vernment and service. --
Mahmood Shah Shurky, immediately after this
treaty, returned to Jeonpoor, and Bheilole pro-
ceeded fo take possession of Shumsabad. Mah-
mood Shah Shutky, incensed at this proceeding,
yeturned to Shumsabad, where two parties from
the Dehly army, under Kootub Khan Lody and
Duria Khan Lody surprised the Shurky camp in

2) the night.  During this opetation, Kootub Khan’s*
/

horse, liaving tseddenupon-a-tent-peg, threw his
master, who was taken prisoner, but his division

# From the context it appears that this person was not the
same who held the government of Rabery, but some other
military leader in Bheilolé's army,
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retreated without molestation to the Dehly lines.

_ Bheilole Lody drew out his army on the following
morning; but on receiving advice that Mahmood

Shah Shurky had just expired, and that his ministers

‘had set up his son Mahomed Shah Shurky, a treaty
- was conclnded through the mediation of Beeby
' Rajy; the young King’s mother, Mahomed Shah

Shurky accordingly returned to Joon-

AL 806 noor, and Bheilole took the route of

" Dehly,

Bl ;ﬁBefofe.B’heilole arrived at the 'éapita], he re-

ceived a letter from Shums Khatoon, the sistor of
Kootub Khan, entreating him not to suffer her

brother to remain in the hands of Mahomed Shah
* Sburky, a circumstance which induced Bheilole to
break the peace and to return towards J 00DpOeE;
~ on which occasion Mahomed Shah Shurky met
‘him near Sasny. At this place, Hoossein Kban,

the younger brother of Mahomed Shah Shurky,
apprehensive of his brother, withdrew with all his
adherents to Kanowj, and Julal Khan Shurky, his
other brother, followed his example. = Bheilole
availed himself of these events to detach a foree to
seize Hoossein Khan, in which object it failed, but

overtaking Julal Khan, he was taken prisoner ; and

‘Bheilole determined to detain him as a hostage till
the release of Kootub Khan by the King of
Joeupoor., i _ :

. Meanwhile the Shurky officers conspiring against
Mahomed Shah put him to death, and recalling
Hoossein Khan, who had fled to Kunowj. placed
him on the throne. Bheilole now agreed to a truce
for four years, on condition that both Kootub
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o Khan and Julal Khan should be released.  Bheilole
| forthwith returned towards Shumsabad, where Nur-
sing Ray, the son of Purtab Ray, came to pay his
respects. - It appears the latter chief had formerly
taken a standard and a pair, of drams from Duria
Khan Lody in action ; and that chief; in order to
revenge himself, assassinated Nursing Ray, in spite
of the opposition of Kootub Khan, the son of
Hoossein Khan,  Moobarik Khan, apprehensive of
Duria Khan’s influence at court, fled to Hoossein
Shah Shurky.  Bheilole returned to Dehly 3 and his
attention being shortly after excited by the re-
bellion of the viceroy of Mooltan, and by the dis-
orders in Punjab, he proceeded in that direction,
On his inarch he learned that Hoossein Shah Shurky,
taking advantage of his absence, was approaching
Dehly for the purpose of besieging that city : he
was induced to countermarch, and leaving the
city in charge of Kootub Khan* and Jehan Khan,
Bheilole marched direct towards the enemy. The
two armies met at the village of Chundwar, where
they skirmished without much effect for seven
days, when a truce was concluded for the term of
three yoars; at the expiration of which period
Floossein Shah investing Etawa took it, and gained
over Ahmud Kban Mewatty and Eesa Khan of
Kole to his interest.  Ahmud Khan Julwany,
also, the governor of Byana, went so far as to coin
money and read the Khootba in the name of the
Shurky monarch, who now advanced with an army
of 100,000 borse and 1000 elephants from Etawa

* The game person alluded to in a forer note,
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towards Deh]y‘ Bheilole, undwmayed by the sus
periority of Hoossein Shah Shutky’s force, marched
out boldly to oppose the invader. The two armies,
 however, after remaining encamped for some time
in sight of each other at Bhutwara, engaged only
in partial skirmishes, in which no advantage was
-'_obtamed by either party, and a hollow truce was
ragam coneluded. This pacification was not of
long duration ; for Hoossein Shah Shurky, having
advanced again towards Dehly some months after,
was opposed at the village of Sunkur, and offlized
| to fall back without attaining any object.
At  this time, Beeby Rajy, the mother of
Hoossein Shah Shurky, dying at Ktawa, the Raja
of Gualiar, and Kootub Khan, the son of Hoos-
sein Khan, Afghan of Rabery, went to condole
with him. During his visit, Kootub Khan, per-
ceiving the rooted enmity of Hoossein Shal Shurky
towards Bheilole, took occasion to observe that the
King was nothing more than one of the dependents
of Dehly, and could not hope to contend long with
him, descended from a race of kings; concluding
his speech by saying, <« If I do not put you in
s« possession of Dehly, look on my words as no.
s thing.”” Having taken his leave from Hoossein
Shah’s court, Kootub Khan proceeded to Dehly,
where he stated that he had escaped with much
difficulty from the hands of Hoossein Shah Shurky,
who. was meditating a fresh attack on Bheilole
About this time, the ex-monarch, Syud Alla-
ood-Deen, who had abdicated the throne of Dehly,
dying at Budaoon, Hoossein Shah Shurky pro-
ceeded thither, and after performing the funeral
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/eeremonies, seized that district from the children
of Alla-ood-Deen.  From thence, marching to
Sumbhul, he imprisoned Moobairk Kham, go-
~vernor of (that provinee 3 and proceeding‘towards
. Debly in the year 888, he crossed the
river Jumna near, the Kutcha-Ghat.
Bheilole Lody was at Surhind when he
received intelligence of this invasion; and re.
turning with expedition to his capital, several slight
gctions ensued, in which Hoossein Shah Shurky had
in general the advantage. Another treaty was
- however brought about through Kootub Khau, in
which it was =agreed that Bheilole should re-
linquish all the territory eastward of the Ganges on
condition of his retaining possession 'of all the
districts on the west bank of that river. ‘These
termns being concluded, Hoossein Shah retreated
towards Joonpoor; but Bheilole broke his faith,
and pursuing Hoossein Shah, attacked him on his
march, killing vast numbers of his troops, and
taking forty officers of rank prisoners, besides part
of his treasure and equipage. Bheilole followed
up his success, occupied several districts helonging
to. Hoossein Shah Shurky, such as Kampila,
Puttya]y, Shumsabad, Sukeet, Murhera, Mg, and
Jalesur, and appointed agents for their manage-
ment. Hoossein Shah Shurky, however, halted
at Rampinjun, and gave battle, in which both
parties claimed the victory; after which peace
was once more concluded, leaving the village of
Dopamow as the boundary between the kingdoms,
when Hoossein Shah proceeded to Rabuy, and
Bheilole to Dehly.

As ;{,_883.
Alp. 1478
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'-_"'-“““ Hoossein Shah could not, however, forgive the

- perfidy of Bheilole; and having recruited his army,
~ he again ‘waged war, but was defeated at the
village of Sirsar, after an obstinate battle, with the

loss of all his treasure and baggage, an event vchich.

greatly added to Bheilole’s reputation. Hoossein
Wi Shah Shurky fell back on Rabery, but was followed
i closely by Bheilole, and totally overthrown
: ,.?é in a second engagement. After this battle
i Hoossein Shah retreated towards Gua-
har, where the. Raja supplied him with seyeral
lacks of rupees, and with elephants, horses, camels,
and a handsome suit of camp-equipage, and ace
companied him to Kalpy. Bheilole, in the mean
time, marched to Ktawa, then occupied by lbra-
him, the brother of Hoossein Shah Shurky, which
place surrendered by capitulation, . Ibrahim Khan
Lohany, one of the Dehly officers, being left in
‘charge of Etawa, the King proceeded to Kalpy,
where he found Hoossein Shah Shurky encamped.
The riverintervening, both armies remained for somne
‘months inactive, till at length Ray Tilloke Chund
of Kutehr, having come over to Bheilole; pointed
out, to him a ford, by which he crossed. He
attacked Hoossein: Shah Shurky, and defeating
“him, compelled him to fly in the direction of Joon.
poor. At Kunowj, Hoossein Shah Shurky again
opposed Bheilole, on the banks of the Kaly Nudy,
but having now acquired a habit. of retreating,
he was, as usual, defeated; his regalia and equipage
were taken, and also the chief lady of his seraglio,
Beeby Khonza, - 8he was the daughter of the late

ex-monarch, byud Allacood-Deen, and was treated

R I S
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U0 ayith great respect by Bheilole, who aftér this vic-
tory retreated to Dehly. TR R
ITaving recruited his troops, Bheilole aidvanced
towards Joonpoor, and haying entirely subdued
the country, made over the charge of it to Moo«
barik Khan Lohany, leaving Kootub Khan Lody,
" together with Khan Jehan, and other chiefs, at
Bisowly. - The King now marched to Buodaoon,
where he heard of Kootub Khan’s death. Khan
Jehan, Moobarik Khan, a_nd many other officers,
though they outwardly professed allegiance, 0o
sooner heard of the death of Kootub Khan than
 they concerted measures to acquire independence.
Bheilole, apprised of their intentions, marched to.
wards Joonpoor, and having expelled Hoossein
Shah Shurky, who bad made an attempt to recover
his kingdom, placed Barbik, one of his ownl Hons,
on the throne of ‘Joonpoor. From thence he pro-
ceeded to Kalpy. which having reduced, he con-
forred the government on his grandson, Azim
Hoomaioon, the son of his eldest son, Bayezeed
Khan. The King then marched to Dholpoor,
levying tribute on the raja of that place; from
thence he proceeded to Ruttunpoor, a place
situated in the districts of Runtunbhore, where
haying committed great devastations, he returned
to Dehly. | ol _
Bheilole being now old, and infirmities daily
increasing on him, divided his dominions _among .
his sons. Joonpoor was conferred on Barbik
Khan ;- Kurra and Manikpoor on Alum Khan;
Bhyraich on his nephew Sheikhzada Maho-
med Firmully, known by the name of Kala
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P-’-_I-ia_-r- (the Black Rock), Luknow I'a;‘hd Kalpy gn
Azum Hoomayoon, whose father, Bayezeed Khan,

- Was assaslnated by one of his own servants,  Bu.

daoon was allotted to Khan Jehan, a relation and

one of his oldest officers, and Dehly, with several
districts in the Dooab, were conferred on his 5011,
the Prince Nizam Khan, known afterwards by the
name of Sikundur, whom be now declared his heir
and successor.

Some time after this, the King proceeded to

Gualiar, and raising a tribute of 80 lacks of tankas

‘from the Raja, came to Ktawa, from whence having

expelled Sungut Sing, be returned towards Dehly.
Falling sick on his march, many of the nobles were
desirous that he should alter his former will, with
respect to the succession, which, they said, was the

- undoubted right of Azim Hoomayoon, his grandson

by his eldest son.  The Queen, hearing this, wrote
to her son, Nizam Khan, (who, having intimation
of his father’s illness, was about to. quit Dehly,)
by rio means to come, lest he might be imprisoned
by the nobles. At the same time, the King, by

the advice of his officers, caused letters to be

written, to hasten his arrival in the camp in order to
sée him before his death, Nizam Khan was greatly
perplesed how to act. He at length conferved
with Kootloogh Khan, the vizier of Hoossein Shah
Shurky, who was then a prisoner at Dehly, This
chief recommended him to pitch his tents outside
of the city, and to proceed by slow journies

towards the camp. = Meanwhile, the King’s disease

imcreasing, he died at, Badowly, in the district of

Wi 1. el o AL
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Sukeet, in the year 894, after a reign

sy cars, Ci 18, and seven
A ie, |of 88 years, cight months, and seven

\< . days,
f #\  Bheilole Lody was esteemed a virtuous and .a

I .. mild prince, executing justice to the utmost of his
’\ Y knowledge, and treating his courtiers rather as
' companions than subjects. = When he obtained the
crown, he divided the public treasure among his
friends, and could be seldom prevailed on to
ascend the throne; saying, < That it was enough
¢ for him that the world knew he was king, with-
% gut his making a display of royalty.” He was
extremely temperate in his diet, and seldom ate at
home. Though a man of no great literary ac-
quirement himself, he was fond of the company of
learned nien, whom he rewarded according to their
merit.  He placed great reliance on the courage of
his Mogul troops, on which account they met
with such encouragement among his relations and
courtiers, that it is estimated there were mnearly
20,000 Moguls in the service of the government
during his reign. He was a wise and brave princey
and personally well acquainted with Mahomedan
law. He also studied the best institutes for main-
taining order in his government, which he inva-
riably adopted. He was prudent, and, above all
things, deprecated hurry in matters of state; and,
indeed, his conduct throughout life sufliciently
evinced how much he practised this quality, /)(
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2:_"’5;*4)‘3714?2 chiefs raise Nizam Khan to the throne, under the
title of Sikundur. — Eesa Khan rofuses at first to acknowledge

\ Sikundur, but does so in the end — he vevolts, and is killed

| in battle.~~ Barbik Khan refuses obedience — he is defeated
s reinstated in his government of Jeompoor — his bad

| administration = is eventually removed.— Efforts made by
. Hoossein Shah Shurky to recover Joonpoor defeated. — Sikun-
dur pursues Hoossein Shah to Bengal — invades Punna and

" Banda — proceeds to Dholpoor and Gualiar ~ receives sub~
 mission, from the rajas of both places— subsequently takes Dhol
- poor. ~= An earthquake in Agra, — Gives encouragement to
the son of the Kiung of Malwa to make ovey Chundery to him
i gbtains possession of Chundery. — Endeavours to lay hold

on Runtunblore, but_fails.— Summons an army io collect at
\Agra for the siege of Gualiar. — The King is laken illy and

. digs = his character ~ his zeal for the Mehomedan religion..

Tmmentarery on the death of Bheilole, the nobles
met together, and consulted whom they should
elevate to the throne. Some were disposed towards
Azim Hoomayoon, the grandson, and others,
t‘é’)’iﬁérds Barbik Khan, the eldest surviving son of
the late king. While they were debating on this
point, the mother of Sikundur Khan (whose name
was Zeind, the 'daughter of a goldsmith, buf

raised to the King’s bed owing to her beauty)

addressed the assembly from behind a curtain in
fayour of her son. Upon which, Eesa Khan, the
OO 2y
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nephew of Bheilole, tauntingly observed, ¢ What
« business have goldsmiths’ sons with the reins of
« government, since it is proverbial that ¢ monkeys
« make but bad carpenters’” =~ Khan Khany
Lohany, one of the officers present, took him up
sharply, saying, The King is yet scarcely cold
¢ in his graye, and it ill becomes us at such a
s time to cast reflections on any of his progeny.”
Eesa Khan desired him to hold his tongue; ob-
serving, he was nothing but a servant, and had
1o right to interfere v family affairs, = Khan Kha-
nan now rising, instantly declared himself a ser-
vant of Sikundur Lody, and said that he would
maintain his right against all who durst oppose
it ; when, having left the council, and being fol-
lowed by all his party, he carried the body of
the deceased King to the town of Jellaly, where,
being met by Sikundur, the latter ascended his
father’s throne at that place. Sikundur now sent
the corpse of his father to Dehly, and instantly
marched against Eesa Khan, Having defeated
this chief, he afterwards forgave him, and, return-
ing to the capital, followed the example of his
father, by conferring favours on all his kindred.
At the time of his accession, Sikundur Lody
had six sons; viz. Ibrahim, Juolal, Ismael, Hoos-
sein, Mahmood, and Azim Hoomayoon, besides
whom were 44 officers of distinction ; such as

Khan Jehan Lody. ;

Ahmud Khan, grandson of Khan Khanan Fie-

mully, - :
Sheikzada Firmully,
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' Khan Khanan Lohany. #
| Azim Hoomayoon Sheerwanys
" Duria Khan Lody. '
Julal Khan Lody, Naib * of Kalpy.
| Sheer Khan Lody- -
' Moobarik Khan Mowjy.
Khuleel Khan Lody-
- Ahimud Khan Lody, Naib of Etawa.
! Ibrahim Khan Sheerwany.
' Mahomed Shah Lody. j
_ Baboo Khan Sheerwany.
© ‘Hoossein Khan Firmully, Naib of Saharun.
‘Sooliman Khan Firmully.
~ Syeed Khan Lody.
1 Ismael Khan Lohany.
. Tartar Khan Firmully.
* Sheikh Khan Lody.
Sheikzada Mahomed Firmully (called also Kala
P’har). i LS
_ Sheik Jumal Firmully.
'\ §heikh Othman Firmully.
© Sheikh Ahmud Firmully.
" Adam Khan Lody. '
Floossein Khan Lody.
Kubeer Khan Lody.
" Nuseer Khan Lobany.

* The word Naib, for lieutenant-governot of a province,
seems to bave been first introduced by the Toghluk dynasty :
it prevailed afterwards for several ages, {ill, in the refinement of
Hindoostany plraseology, wherein every person of rank is
magnified by being apoken of in the plural numbet, as the
kings of Europe say We, instead of I, the word Naib became
Nawab, and we have become familiar with it as Nabob,

003
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i /Ghazy Khan byt o o
Tartar Khan, governor of Tijara.
Khwaja Nust-oolla. AR
Mobarik Khan. iR
Yekbal Khan, Naib of Bary.
Asghur, the son of Kowam-ool-Moolk,
. Sheer Khan Lobany. | AL
" Tmad-ool-Moolk Kumboh.
Alam Khan Lody. Sl
XKubeer Khan Lody.
Bhikun Khan Lody.
Zaheer Khan Lody.
Qomr Khan Sheerwany.
Jubbar Khan Sheerwany.
Alum Khan Julwany.
Sufdur Khan Julwany. | 0
Meean Joomun Kumboh,
Mujd-ood-Deen, ) |
 Sheikh Ibrabim, ;
" Sheikh Othman, ! Lords of the
Sheikh Oomr,
Sheikh Siddeek, '
 Kazy Abdool, Wahab of Kabal,
Meean Bhooty, -

. Sometime afber his accession, Siknndur Lody
marched towards Rabery and thence to the fort
~of Chundwar, in which place bis brother, the Prince
Alum Khan, had declared his independence,  On
the King’s approach, Alum Khan, abandoning
the town, fled to Less Khan Lody at Pattialy.
Sikundur having conferred the district of Rabery
on Khan Khanan Firmolly, proceeded to Etawa,
where he received the submission of his brother

bed-chamber. :

.
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"".Alum Khan, and pardoned hlm he alao conf’el red
Etawa upon him as his estate. T hence the King
. proceeded to Pattialy, where Fesa Khan heing
attacked was wounded, and threw himself on' the
King’s mercy. He was pardoned, but soon after
_dléd of hig wounds.

- Sikundur Lody now deputed a mission to wait
on the Prince melk his brother, who assumed
the title of King of Joonpoor, requiring him to do

M -hamage, and to cause the name of Sikundur to be

~read first in the Khootba.  Barbik#*, however, re-
. \jecting this proposal, Sikundur Lody marched
‘against him.  Barbik, and his general Kala P’har,

. drew out in order of battle to meet his brother,
and an action ensued, in which Kala P’har was

 taken prisoner.  Sikundur Lody, on secing him,
alighted from his horse, and embracing him, said
he esteemed him as his father, and begged he
would look on him as his son. Kala P’har, over-
come by this unexpected honour, mphed that
‘except his life, he had nothing to offer in return,
and trusted that he mrght be e,mployed and have
an opportunity of evincing his gratitude : he was
accordingly mounted on one of the King’s own
horses, and instantly led a charge of cavalry against
the party whose cause he had before
espoused, which in a great measure led
to the King’s success. The tropps of

: .A'. . 5944
AD, 14-88

G

Barblk seeing Kala' P’har charging them, and .

'lmagmmg that all !ns dwls:on had also gom over

; *It wﬂ] iw 1ecqllected that Barbik was Sikundur's elder

brother,
0o 4
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to the enemy, took to flight. The Prince Barbik
behaved swith great bravery, but being deserted by
his LIOOPa,_ﬂEd to Budaoon. His son, Moobarik
Khan, however, was made prisoner in the action.
Sikundar Lody pursded his brother to Budaoon,
and laid siege to it but Barbik soon after capitu-
lating, he was received with great kindness, aud
treated with resw The Eng‘ now returned
to Joonpoor . finding that Hoosscin - Shah
Shurky, the exiled king of the Shurky provivices,

. Wasd stllL in ‘force in Belmr he thought it atdvisable

to permlt his brother Barbik to retain the govern-
ment of Joonpoor in order to check Hoossein Shah
Shurky i any attempt he might make on Dehly.
At the same time, also, he left some trusty friends
of his own with the Prince, on whom he bestowed
estates, in order to retain them str*adv to his in-
terest. i

Sikundur Lody, now proceedmg to Kalpy, re-.
sumed the government from Azim Hoomayoon,

~ and conferred it on Mahomed Khan Lody. « From

thence he marched to Bhurayee*, where "Lartar
Khan the governor, after doing homage, was cone
firmed in his estate. The King thence marched in
the direction of Gualiar, whither he sent one of
his officers, Khwa_]a Mahomed Firmully, with an
honorary dress to Raja Man Sing, who despatched
his nephew with presents to meet the King at.
Byana. ' Socltan Shurf, the governor of Byana,,
also paid his respects to the King, who removed

# A large town of this name exists at the cOnﬁaernce of the
Chumbul and the Jumna,
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Tum ﬁom that district, but nominated him go-
vernor of Jalesur, Chundwara, Mat.rhemJ and
Sukeet.  Sooltan  Shurf was accompanied by
Qomr Khan Sheerwany, to whom he was directed
to make over the fort of Byana; but when he
had got within the walls, Sooltan Shurf shut the
gates, and prepared to defend himself. The King,
however, choosing to everlook (the circumstance,

went to Agra, where Heibut Khan).}ulwan_y, who

held that fort under Sooltan fahui' “also shug the
gates.  This insult so enraged Sikundar Lody,
that Ieavmg part of his army to besiege Agra, he

returnied in person towards Byana, to which he

lald siege.  Sooltan Shurf, in the end, was obliged
to capitulate, and in the year 897
101, his government was given to Khan

Khanan Firmully, and he was banished
for the present to Gualiar, The fort of Agra fall.

ing about the same time, Sikundur returned to

Dehly, where in a few days after he received
advices of an insurrection at Joonpoor among
the zemindars, who had raised an army, consist-
ing of 100,600 horse and foot, and had slain
Sheer. Khan, the brother of Moobarik Khan
Lohany, governor of Kurra. Moobarik Khan
himself was driven from Kurra, and taken pri-
soner, while in the act of crossing the Ganges,
by Saba Dew Raja of Kutra. The Prince Bar-
bik had also been obliged to fly to Byraich to
solicit  the assistance of Kala P’har, so that the
King, after only 24 days® rest at Dehly was
under the necessity of returning towards Joon.
poor, When he arrived at Dulmow he was



joined by the Prince Barbik; and Raja Saha
Dew, ‘hearing of his approach, released Moo-
barik Khan Lohany, The King proceeded to
Katgur, where the zemindars had assembled in
force ; but'they were defeated, and much propesty
~fell into the hands of the Moslems. The King,
having marched to Joonpoor and reinstated the
Pririce Barbik, himself remained a month in that
‘wicinity. ' Here he received _mt_dhg_emc that the
zemindars, having been again driven to excesses,
had besieged Barbik in Joonpoor ; on which Sikun-
dur ordered Kala P’har, Hoomayoou Khan Sheer-
wany, and’ Khan Khanan Lohany, from Oude,
and Modbarik Khan from Kurra, to unite and
march against them. e also ‘directed them to
'send the Prince Barbik to the ‘presence, where he
was made over, as a state-prisoner, to the charge of
Heibut Khan and'Oomur Khan Sheerwany.
 After these events the King marched towards
Chunar, then in possession of Hoossein Shah
~Shurky. On his approach, the garrison made asally,
‘but were repulsed.  On reconnoitring the place,
however, and being unwilling to incur the risk of
failure, he proceeded to Kootumba*, a place de-
pendent on Patna. Bulbhudur Ray, Raja of Koo-
tumba, came forth to teet the King, and submitted
to his authority. From thence the King marched
to Arele, accompanied by Bulbhudur Ray. 'Butthe
- Raja suspecting treachery, left his retinue, and
fled one night from the camp to Patna,  Sikundur
Lody permitted the Raja’s followers to qmt tlie'
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i camp, next day, with his private property, but he al-.
- lowed his own troops to plunder tha Leountry on

their route to Arele.  On crossing the Ganges at
Kurra, the King went to Dulmow, where he

married the widow of Sheer Khan, the late go-
wernor of that place. From Dulmow, Sikundur
.marched to Shumsabad, where, having halted for

six months, he proceedcd to:Sumbhul ; but return-

ing from thence in a few days to bhumsabad he

plundered the town of Dewnary, where a banditti

A had taken post. The King spent the rainy season

.&.H 900 '
_J,a ;o. 14:94-

at Shumsabad, and in the year 900, he
- again marched in the direction of Patna.
- He was there opposed by Nursing Ray,

_the son of Bulbhudur Ray, at the Hundia Ghai,
who being defeated, retired within the walls of
‘Patna.  On the King’s approach, Bulbhudur Ray

fled, taking the route of Surgooja, and died on the

| journey. | After this event the King pmcev..ded to

. Sahsdewar; 3 but provisions becoming scarce in his
camp, he was obliged to return to Joonpoor,

~ having in this march lost most of his cavalry,

awmg to the bad roads and want of forage. Nurs-
ing Ray, the son of Bulbhudur Ray, and other ze-
mindars, taking advantage of this circumstance,

wrote to Hoossein Shah “thl« y, then in possession
~of the province of Bebar, that the cavaly of
Sikundur Lody was bow. in so wretched a condi-
~tion, that a favourable opportunity preseuted
- Litself for him to take: revenge. Hoossein Shah
‘Shurky accordingly put his army in motion, and

marched against the King, = Sikundur, on hearing
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~of his intentions, crossed the Ganges to meet him;
and the t\w armies came in sight of each other at
a spot distant 18 coss (27 mlles) from  Benares,

An obstinate battle e¢nsued, in which Hoossein

Shah Shurky was defeated, and fled to Patpa. Si-

kundur Lody, according to the most authentic

accounts, pursued the fugitives for several days,
with 100,000 horse ; but hearing that his enemy

had fled to Behar, he halted on the ninth day, till
the whole of his army joined, with which he
marched towards Behar. Hoossein Shah left
Mullik Kundoo to protect Behar, and fled him-
self to Koolgam, in the district of Luknowty.

Alla-ood-deen Shah Poorby, King of Bengal,

received the fugitive at his court with the utmost
courtesy. Here he passed the remainder of his days
in obscurity ; and the royal race of Joonpoor be-
came extinet in his person.

Sikundur Lody, having returned to Dewnary,
detached a division of his army against Mullik
'Kundoo, who fled, leaving the country open to the
King of Dehly, who dppOllltEd Heibut Khan to
remain with a force in Behar. The King now
proceeded towards Tirhoot, the raja of which
eountry consented to pay an annual tribute.
Moobarik Khan Lohany was directed to receive
it, while the King went to Dervishpoor, and
visited the tomb of Sheikh Shuct Munery; on
« which occasion he distributed presents to the
holy persons w 'ho resided at that shrine, It was
at this tinie, also, that Khan Jehan, the son of
Khan Khanan Firmully, died, and his son, Ah-
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mud Khan, received the title of Azim Hoomayoon.
The King now marched his army towards Ben-
gal, and reaching Kootlooghpoor, Agl}ﬁyﬁbngeen
Shah Poorby sent his son Daniel to oppose him,
On the part of the King of Dehly, Mahmood
Khan Lody and Moobarik Khan Mowjy were de-
tached to meet Daniel. . The opposing armies e
camped close to each other at the village of Barra,
_but instead of fighting, a peace was concluded 5
~ ‘when it was agreed that both parties should cease
to molest each other, or to afford protection to
their mutual enemies.  On the return of the army.
towards Dehly, Moobarik Khan Mowjy died at
Patna, and at Dervishpoor, Moobarik Khan
Lohany also died suddenly. The duty of col-
lecting the tribute of Tirhoot was now intrusted ;
to Azim Hoomayoon, the son of Khan Jehan, -
while the government of Behar was  conferred
upon Duria Khan, the son of the late Moo-
barik Khan Lohany. There happened, at this
time, a great dearth in the country; but the
transit customs on grain being relinquished, that
calamity was in some measure averted, nor were
the duties again imposed during that reign. Si-
kunduy, meanwhile, reducing the districts of
‘Saharun, then in the hands of the zemindars,
gave the lands in jageers to several of his offi-
cers, He then refurned to Joonpoor, where ‘he
resided six months. -

Sometime previously to this cvent, the King
having asked the daughter of Salivahn, Raja of
Punna, in marriage, the Raja refused to comply
with his request; in consequence of which, the
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it Qm King put his army in motion, and in the,
N lios. year 904, marched to Punna, and sacked
| the country as far as Banda, after which

he returned to Joonpoor, where he spent some
time. At this period the accounts of Moobarik
Khan Lody being inspected, for the period of his
administration in Joonpoor, and great defaleation -
being discovered, the King ordered the balances
' to be realised from him. This circumstance gave
umbrage to many Afghan officers, which eyinced
itself in the factions that arose in favour of the de-
faulter.  One day, while the King and his coutt
were playing at chowgan *, the bat of Heibut Khan
}  Sheerwany, by accident, came in contact with the
 head of Sooliman, the son of Duria Khan Lody,
who received a severe blow. This was resented
__on the spot by Khizr Khan, the brother of Sooli-
man, who galloping up to Hybut Khan, struck him
yiolently over the skull. In a few minutes both
. gides joined in'the quarrel, and the field was in
uproar and confusion. Mahmood Khan Lody and |
Khan Khanan Lody interposing, endeavoured to
pacify Heibut Khan, and succeeded in persuads
ing him to go quietly home with them. The King,
apprehensive of conspiracy, retired immediately to
the palace, but nothing more transpiring, he made
another party at the same game a few days after.
On the road to the play-ground, Shums Khan, 3
relation of Heibut Khan Sheerwany, percei-vi'uizg"
Khize Khan, the brother of Sooliman Khan Lody,
instantly attacked Lim with his bat, and knocked

* The game of chowgan bas before ‘been described : vide
note, p. 199, ' '
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 him off his horse, The King abused Shums Khan

 grossly, and returned to his palace; and could not be

‘persuaded but that there was some plot in agita-
tion. He accordingly ordered his guards to be
selected, and to be more than wsually vigilant.

The King’s jealousies were not groundless; for at
. that time Heibut Khan Sheerwany and two other
chiefs had proposed to the Prince Futteh Khan,

' the, Klngs brother, to cut him off, declaring that
‘he was now universally disliked, and they offered

to place Futteh Khan on the throne. The Prince,
_ desiring some time to consider of the project,
| consulted Sheikh Tahir,Kabully and his mother,
 who both strongly dissuaded him from lending
! }nmsdf to the conspiracy; and lest the affair should
Lby any other means transpire, they recommended
him to acquaint the King instantly of what had
“been proposed to him. On this, the conspirators

being detached on different services, to a distance,

‘were cut off in detail,
' In the year 905, the King. marched
to Sumbhul, where he spent four years,
~ partly in pleasure, and partly in trans-
actmg civil affairs. While thus employed, he heard
‘heavy complaints from the Afghans against Asghur
':Khan, the governor of Deh lv On this he oulervd
Khuvas Khan, governor of Machlwara, to proceed
to Deh]y, and to ‘send Aughur Khan prisoner fo
‘courty. Asghur Khan, receiving advice of this inten-
tion, quitted the capital, and threw himself at the
King’s feet ; but not being able to frame sufficient
~ excuse for lns conduct, he was ord= " iato confine-
ment. Itis m&ntxoned that abr T

A'. H. 905.
A« D. 1499,
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' min, whose name was Boodhun, an 'inh'_zihi't.ém_t' of
_ Kataen, mear Luknow, being upbraided by some.
Bl Mahomedans on account ‘of his faith, maintained
.« that the religions both of the Moslems and
« Hindoos, if acted on with sincerity, were equally
As this opinion had been supported with some
 ingenuity, aud much argument, By the brahmin,
the subject came to be “diseussed publicly before
the Kazies of  Luknow, and the brahwin was
 ordered to appear.  On this occasion, Kazy Peeala
rf and Sheikh Budr, both residing at Luknow, had
e different opinions 3 and the arguments of the brah-
min having ‘made some stir | in  the city, Azim

Hoomayoon, the governor, thought fit. to send all|

the parties to the court at Sumbhul, where the

[
| Lty id n e ’
3 King, :_w.h_o was _fqnd' of hearing, disputations - on’
K religious subjects, directed. the most leatned men
=‘ in his cmpire ‘to assemble and argue the point of
|

faith with the brahmin, The following persons
were accordingly brought together ; -— s

i . Meean Abdool Elias, and
. Meean Allahdad of Toolumba.

\ " Syud Mahomed, Bin Syud Khan of Dehly..

o SO Mooll_et" 'Kb:btb-'OOH-:Deén- T SR g

: i Mo_o_]l_a. Allahdad Emle}lf'mﬁgﬁur md RN
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Syud Boorhan, and i i iy

Syud Ahsun from Kinowj. ;
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